sf

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 22nd Annual General Meeting of the Members of SUPER FINE KNITTERS LIMITED will be held on Wednesday, 30th day of September, 2020 at 10.00 a.m., through video conferencing (VC) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

- To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020 along with the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.
- 2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vivek Lakra (DIN 01067219) who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

For and on behalf of the Board Super Fine Knitters Limited

> Sd/-Samridhi Seth Company Secretary 269, Industrial Area- A, Ludhiana

Date: 05th September, 2020

Place: Ludhiana

NOTES:

- 1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. The forthcoming AGM will thus be held through video conferencing (VC). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC.
- 2. The Members can join the AGM in the VC mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC will be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.
- **3.** The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.
- **4.** Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC and cast their votes through e-voting.
- 5. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.superfineknitters.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com respectively. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.
- **6.** The AGM has been convened through VC in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.
- **7.** The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 22nd September, 2020 to Wednesday, 30th September, 2020 (both days inclusive).
- 8. Members desirous of seeking any information concerning the accounts and operations of the Company are requested to address their queries to the Company Secretary, at the Registered Office at least ten days in advance of the meeting, so that the information, to the extent practicable, can be made available at the meeting.
- **9.** The members, who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register the same in respect of electronic holdings with the depository through their depository participants. Members who are holding shares in physical form are requested to get their e-mail addresses registered with the Registrar & Transfer Agent, Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
- **10.** The Shareholders are requested to notify immediately any change of address or demise of any Member as soon as possible to the Registrar & Transfer Agent, Cameo Corporate Services Ltd, Subramanian Building, 1 Club House Road, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, mentioning their Folio Number.
- **11.** Annual accounts and related documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company.



- 12. Notice of the 22nd Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for 2019-2020 will also be available on the Company's website www.superfineknitters.com for their download. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company's Registered Office for inspection during normal business hours on working days. For any communication, the shareholders may also send their request to the Company's email id: cs@superfineknitters.com
- **13.** SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number ("PAN") by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company/ RTA.
- **14.** The Equity Shares of the Company are mandated for the trading in the compulsory demat mode. The ISIN no. allotted for the Company's Shares is INE459U01018.

15. Voting through electronic means:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

- (i) The voting period begins on Sunday 27th September 2020 at 10.00 a.m. and ends on Tuesday 29th September 2020 at 05.00 p.m. During this period Shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Thursday 24th September, 2020 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
- (ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.
- (iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
- (iv) Click on "Shareholders".
- (v) Now Enter your User ID
 - a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
 - b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
 - c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL's **EASI/EASIEST** e-services, you can log-in at https://www.cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you successfully log-in to CDSL's EASI/EASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast your vote electronically.

- (vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
- (vii) If you are holding shares in DematForm and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
- (viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

	For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
Permanent Account Number (PAN)	Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both Demat Shareholders as well as Physical Shareholders)
, ,	Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the PAN field.
	In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0's before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field.
Dividend Bank Details OR Date of Birth (DOB)	Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your Demat account or in the Company records in order to login. If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

- (ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.
- (x) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they

sf

are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

- (xi) For Shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.
- (xii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant **SUPER FINE KNITTERS LIMITED** on which you choose to vote.
- (xiii) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option "YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.
- (xiv) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
- (xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.
- (xvi) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
- (xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the Voting page.
- (xviii) If a Demat Account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
- (xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting available for android, Apple and Windows based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store, App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC ARE AS UNDER:

- Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC. Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC will be available in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed.
- 2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.
- 3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.
- 4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
- 5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.
- 6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM/EGM ARE AS UNDER:-

- The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.
- 2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.
- 3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.
- 4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

(xx) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

- Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as "Corporate" module.
- A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
- After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.
- The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

- A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favor of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
- Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
 letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized
 to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; cs@superfineknitters.com, if they
 have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to
 verify the same.
- **16.** The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the **cut-off date (record date) of 24th September, 2020**.
- **17.** M/s Narang G and Associates, Company Secretaries has been appointed as the Scrutinizer of the Company to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.
- **18.** The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion of the e-voting period unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting System, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022- 23058738) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542).

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL,) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

For and on behalf of the Board Super Fine Knitters Limited

> Sd/-Samridhi Seth Company Secretary 269, Industrial Area- A, Ludhiana

Date: 05th September, 2020 Place: Ludhiana

BOARD'S REPORT

To, The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 22nd Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

The summarised financial performance of the Company is as under:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars	Current Yr.	Previous Yr.
Turnover (Including Exports Incentives)	9190.97	9215.35
Other Income	8.27	12.62
Profit/(loss) before Depreciation and Taxation	286.14	302.09
Provision for Depreciation	161.77	157.91
Profit/(Loss) before taxation	124.37	144.18
Less: Provision for Taxation	136.04	34.80
Profit/(Loss) after tax	(11.68)	109.38
Balance carried to Balance Sheet	(11.68)	109.38

World Health Organization (WHO) declared outbreak of Corona virus Disease (COVID-19) a global pandemic on March 11, 2020. All domestic operations were disrupted due to the national lockdown from March 24, 2020. and The company had shut down its operations in compliance with the lockdown instructions issued by the Central and State Governments. COVID-19 has impacted the normal business operations of the Company by way of interruption in production, supply chain disruption, unavailability of personnel, closure/lockdown of production facilities etc. during the lockdown period which has been extended till May 17, 2020. However, Production and supply of goods has commenced from the April 21, 2020 at the manufacturing locations of the Company, after obtaining permissions from the appropriate government authorities. It has not impacted much in the Financial Year 2019-20. However, the major impact will be in reflected in the financials of 2020-21.

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

During the year under review, the Company's turnover of INR 9190.97 Lakhs as compared to INR 9215.35 Lakhs for the previous year. The Company has however suffered loss of INR 11.68 Lakhs as compared to profit of INR 109.38 Lakhs for the previous year.

DIVIDEND

The Company has not declared any dividend during the year.

AMOUNTS TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES

During the year the Company does not propose to transfer/carry any amount to the General Reserve.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

Thereis no change in Share Capital of the Company during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors have ultimate responsibility for the management, general affairs, direction, performance and long term success of business as a whole. The Board continuously reviews Company's governance, risk and compliance framework, business plans and organization structure to align with competitive benchmark. The Board represents an optimum mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience which enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the Company.

None of the Directors on the Board hold directorships in more than ten public companies and member of more than ten committees or chairperson of more than five committees across all the public companies in which he or she is a Director. The necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions have been made by all the Directors.

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified for being appointed as Director as specified in Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Composition

The Board of Directors comprises six (6) Directors consisting of three (3) Independent Directors, two (2) Whole-time Directors, one (1) Managing Director.



Name of Directors	Category	No. of Other Directorship held in	Membership of the Committee	Chairman of the Committee
		Public Ltd. Company		
Ajit Kumar Lakra	Promoter/Executive Director	Nil	0	0
Vivek Lakra	Promoter/Executive Director	Nil	1	0
Gita Lakra	Promoter/Executive Director	Nil	0	0
Amit Gupta	Non-Executive/ Independent	Nil	3	0
VipinSehgal	Non-Executive/ Independent	Nil	3	3
Baljit Kumar Trikha	Non-Executive/ Independent	Nil	2	0

Appointment/Reappointment/Resignation from Board of Directors/Key Managerial Personnel

Retirement By Rotation:

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Associations and 152 (6) of Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Vivek Lakra (DIN - 01067219), Whole Time Director will be retiring by rotation at the ensuring Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

The relevant details, as required under the Regulation 36 (3) of Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards, of the person seeking re-appointment as Director are also provided in the Notice convening the 22nd Annual General Meeting.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declaration of Independence from Mr. Vipin Kumar Sehgal, Mr. Amit Gupta, Mr. Baljit Kumar Trikha that the Independent Directors meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Meeting of independent Director:

Separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 16-02-2020, interalia to discuss:

- To evaluate the performance of Non-Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole,
- Review the performance of the Chairman, taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The same was discussed in the Board Meeting that followed the meeting of the Independent Directors, at which the performance of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors was also discussed.
- Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets to discuss and decide on Company, business policy and strategy apart from conducting other Board related businesses. However, in case of a special and urgent business need, the Board's approval was taken by passing resolutions through circulation, as permitted by law, and these were confirmed at the next Board Meeting.

During the period under review nine (9) Board Meetings were held and the gap between two meetings did not exceed the prescribed limits. During the year under review, Company did not passed any resolution by way of Circulation.

The dates on which the Board Meetings were held are as follows:--25-04-2019, 30-05-2019, 16-07-2019, 31-07-2019, 24-08-2020, 04-10-2019, 14-11-2019, 16-02-2020.



The details of attendance of each director at the Board Meetings are given below:

Name of Directors	Category	Number of Board Meetings Eligible to Attend	No. of Board Meetings attended	Attendance of Last AGM
Ajit Kumar Lakra	Promoter/Executive Director	9	9	Yes
Vivek Lakra	Promoter/Executive Director	9	8	Yes
Gita Lakra	Promoter/Executive Director	9	7	No
Amit Gupta	Non-Executive/ Independent	9	6	Yes
Vipin Sehgal	Non-Executive/ Independent	9	6	Yes
Baljit Kumar Trikha	Non-Executive/ Independent	9	7	Yes

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The terms of reference of Board Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. Presently the Company has three committees i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. All the decisions pertaining to the constitution of the Committees, appointment of members, and fixing of terms of reference for committee members are taken by the Board of Directors. Details on the role and composition of these committees, including the number of meetings held during the financial year and the related attendance, are provided below:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has adequately qualified and Independent committee, accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. The major tasks performed by the audit committee may be grouped under the following heads:

Statutory Audit, Internal Audit, reporting and other aspects

- i. The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the Company's internal controls and financial reporting process The Committee acts as a link between the Management, Auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company and has full access to the financial Information.
- ii Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible and ensuring timely submission to statutory authorities.
- iii. Reviewing the Management Discussion & Analysis of financial and operational performance.
- iv. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements and annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the board for approval.
- v. Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the company's system and internal control.
- vi. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.
- vii. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

Audit & other duties

- i. Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.
- ii. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on.
- iii. Review and recommend to the Board the appointment/re-appointment of the Statutory Auditors and internal Auditors considering their independence and effectiveness and their replacement and removal.
- iv. To recommend to the Board the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors and internal auditors.
- v. To grant approval for related party transactions which are in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length pricing basis and to review and approve such transactions subject to the approval of the Board.

The Composition of Audit Committee is as under:

Mr. Vipin Sehgal
 Chairman of the committee and Independent Director
 Mr. Vivek Lakra
 Member of the committee and Executive Director
 Member of the committee and Independent Director

During the year under the review, The Audit Committee met four times on 30th May 2019, 31stAug 2019, 14th Nov 2019 and 16th Feb 2020. All members were present in the meeting.

All the members of the Audit Committee have the requisite qualifications for appointment on the Committee and possess sound knowledge of accounting practices, taxation, financial and internal controls.



The representative(s) of Internal Auditors and the Statutory Auditors are permanent invitees in the meetings of the Committee and they have attended all the Audit committee meetings held during the year where the financial results are considered. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2019 for addressing the shareholders queries.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted, accordance with the Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

The terms of reference of the Committee are as follows:

- 1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees:
- 2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;
- 3. Devising a policy on Board diversity;
- 4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

The remuneration policy as adopted by the company envisages payment of remuneration according to qualification, experience and performance at different levels of the organization. The workers at the factory as well as those rendering clerical, administrative and professional services are suitably remunerated according to the industry norms.

The details of the composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:

Mr. Vipin Sehgal
 Chairman of the committee and Independent Director
 Mr. Baljit Kumar Trikha
 Mr. Amit Gupta
 Chairman of the committee and Independent Director
 Member of the committee and Independent Director

Presently, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of three Members. All the members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are Non-Executive Directors and all are independent. Further, the remuneration policy of the Company is to bring about objectivity in determining the remuneration package while striking a balance between the interest of the Company and the Shareholders.

Details of Remuneration paid to Managing Director/Whole-time Director for the year ended 31st March, 2020 is given below:

Name	Sitting Fees (Rs.)	Salary (Rs.)	Perquisites and allowances etc.(Rs.)	Commission (paid) (Rs)	Total (Rs.)
Mr. Ajit Kumar Lakra	Nil	15,00,000	Nil	Nil	15,00,000
Mr. Vivek Lakra	Nil	13,80,000	Nil	Nil	13,80,000
Mrs. Gita Lakra	Nil	12,00,000	Nil	Nil	12,00,000

Further no sitting fee is paid to any director for attending the Board Meetings of the Company.

During the year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting was held on 30th May, 2019 and all members were duly present in the meeting.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was constituted, accordance with the Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. The Company look after the grievances of the Stakeholders and Redressal of Investor's complaints related to transfer of Shares, non-receipt of Balance Sheet etc.

The Committee performs following functions:

- look into the redressal of grievances of shareholders, debenture holders and other security holders;
- To investigate complaints relating to allotment of shares, approval of transfer or transmission of shares;
- To consider and resolve the grievances of the security holders of the company including complaints related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends; and
- Issue of Duplicate Share Certificates.
- Review of Share dematerialization and rematerialisation.
- Monitoring the expeditious Redressal of Investor Grievances.
- Monitoring the performance of Company's Registrar & Transfer Agent.
- All other matters related to the shares.



The Composition of the 'Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is as under:-

Mr. Vipin Sehgal
 Mr. Baljit Kumar Trikha
 Mr. Amit Gupta
 Chairman of the committee and Independent Director
 Member of the committee and Independent Director
 Member of the committee and Independent Director

The Company has an investor base of over 129 shareholders as on 31st March, 2020. During the year under review, no complaints remained pending. There is no valid request pending for share transfer as at the year end. The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee met two times on 25th April, 2019 and 24th August 2019 during the year. All members were present in the meeting.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution and independence of judgment thereby safeguarding the interest of the Company. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The board also carried out annual performance evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration as well as stakeholder relationship committee. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company strives to incorporate the appropriate standards for corporate governance. However, pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company is not required to mandatorily comply with the provisions of certain regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and therefore the Company has not provide a separate report on Corporate Governance, although few of the information are provided in this report under relevant heading.

According to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the company, being a SME Listed Company of BSE Limited, is exempted from the compliance of corporate governance requirements as provided under regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

- a) That in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch, 2020; the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;
- b) That such accounting policies as mentioned in Notes to the Financial Statements have been selected and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31stMarch, 2020.
- c) That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
- d) That the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;
- e) That proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively.
- f) That systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

M/s. Mehta Sharma & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.(018946N), Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 21st Annual General Meeting held on 21-09-2019 to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till conclusion of 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company for the year 2020-2021.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed Narang G and Associates (CP No.: 16383, ACS: 43779), Company Secretaries for the financial year 2019-2020 to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 is annexed.



Internal Auditors

M/s. Budh Kumar & Associates, Chartered Accountant has been re-appointed as Internal Auditor in the Board meeting held on 30th May, 2020 for the year 2020-2021.

Cost Auditor

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, Cost Audit is not applicable to the Company and its products/business.

EXPLANATION ON STATUTORY AUDITOR'S REPORT/SECRETARIAL AUDITOR'S REPORT

Neither the Statutory Auditor nor Secretarial Auditor of the Company, in their respective reports have made any qualification, reservation, adverse marks or disclaimers. Accordingly, no Explanations thereon are required to be furnished.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The details of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo stipulated under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5, of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company is as follows:

The Company has one Managing Director and the remuneration paid to him is Rs. 1.25 Lac per month only.

The Remuneration paid to all Key management Personnel was in accordance with remuneration policy adopted by the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration committee framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration.

- I. In determining the remuneration of the Senior Management Employees (i.e. KMPs and senior officers just below the board level) the Committee shall ensure / consider the following:
- i. the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmark is clear
- ii. the balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short-term and long-term performance objectives, appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals;
- iii. the remuneration is divided into two components viz. fixed component comprising salaries, perquisites and retirement benefits and a variable component comprising performance bonus; the remuneration including annual increment and performance bonus is decided based on the criticality of the roles and responsibilities, the Company's performance vis-à-vis the annual budget achievement, individuals performance and current compensation trends in the market.
- **II.** The Managing Director or Whole Time Director will carry out the individual performance review based on the standard appraisal matrix and shall take into account the appraisal score card and other factors and thereafter shall recommend the annual increment and performance incentive to the Committee for its review and approval.

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES AND RELATED ANALYSIS

During the year under review, no employee of the Company received salary in excess of the limits as prescribed under the Act. Accordingly, no particulars of employees are being given pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The details pertaining to the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee's remuneration and other prescribed details as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment And Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are annexed herewith and forms part of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no contracts or arrangements entered into by the company in accordance with provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

However, there were certain related party transactions in terms of regulation 23 of the SEBI (listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015 which were entered into on an arm's length basis and were in the ordinary course of business.

There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES

The Company has no Subsidiary, Joint Ventures or Associates.